#### BRANFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION

\*\*This meeting will be live streamed\*\*

WEDNESDAYWalsh Intermediate School6:30 PMCollaboration & Innovation Center (Room 112)April 23, 2025185 Damascus Road, Branford, CT

To locate agendas and to access/view meetings please go to www.branfordschools.org

#### **FULL REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING AGENDA**

#### **Community Agreement**

The Board of Education is committed to supporting the mission, vision, core values and global learning competencies of the Branford Public Schools. We are here to provide access for all students in close collaboration with the Superintendent and in partnership with the larger community.

#### **AGENDA**

- I. Call to Order
- II. Agenda Changes
- III. Appointment
  - A. BHS House Principal
- IV. Student Presentation
  - A. WIS Dance Team
- V. Communications
- VI. Public Comment
- VII. Approve Minutes
- VIII. BOE Student Representatives Report
- IX. Superintendent's Report
- X. Standing Committee: Reports and Referrals to Full Board for Action
  - A. Teaching & Learning Committee
  - **B.** Personnel & Finance Committee
  - C. Policy and Board Governance Committee
  - **D.** Communication Committee
- XI. Consent Agenda Items
  - A. To consider and if appropriate, vote to approve the Second Reading of policies:
    - a. 5550 Homeless Children and Youth
    - b. 5650 Suicide Prevention and Intervention
- XII. Discussion/Action Items
  - A. To Consider and if appropriate, vote to approve the First Reading of policies:
    - a. 1800 Use of School Facilities
    - b. 2200 Retention of Electronic Records and Information
    - c. 4300 Employment and Student Teacher Checks
  - B. To Consider and if appropriate, vote to discontinue policy 4475 Increasing Educator Diversity Plan
  - C. To Consider and if appropriate, vote to approve the Project Graduation Donation
- XIII. Board Reports:
  - A. ACES
  - B. CABE
- XIV. PTA Updates
- XV. Executive Session
  - A. Legal Cases Update
- XVI. Adjourn

#### TO PARTICIPATE IN PUBLIC COMMENTS PLEASE CALL:

(646) 558-8656 - Meeting ID: 815 6405 4671 - Passcode: 812124

When participating by telephone please <u>mute</u> your phone when joining the meeting and <u>unmute</u> your phone when

you are ready to speak. This can be done by pressing \*6 on your phone's keypad.

#### **Rules Governing Public Comments**

Guests attending meetings in person or virtually are invited to make public comment. Speakers must identify themselves by name and address. While the Board does not respond to public comment during the meeting, the Chair and Superintendent will work collaboratively to make sure your comments are thoughtfully considered. Disruptive conduct may result in termination of participation privileges or removal from meetings. Three minutes will be allotted to each speaker.

#### **UPCOMING BOE MEETINGS**

(All meetings will take place in the WIS Collaboration & Innovation Center – Room 112)

Teaching & Learning Committee Meeting	May 7, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
Personnel & Finance Committee Meeting	May 7, 2025 @ 7:00 PM
Policy Committee	May 7, 2025 @ 7:30 PM
Communication Committee	May 21, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
Full BOE Meetings	May 21, 2025 @ 6:30 PM
Committee Chairs Meeting (to set <u>June</u> BOE Agendas)	May 28, 2025 @ 5:00 PM

#### **COMMITTEE CHAIRS & MEMBERS**

#### **Teaching & Learning**

Ellen Michaels, Chair; Meaghan DeLucia, Ram Shrestha, Shawn Tiernan

**Personnel & Finance** 

Meaghan DeLucia, Chair; Ellen Michaels, Judith Barron, Adam Greenberg

#### **Policy & Board Governance**

Shawn Tiernan, Chair; Marie McNamara, Ram Shrestha, Laura Troidle

Communication

Laura Troidle, Chair; Judith Barron, Adam Greenberg, Marie McNamara



Students 5550 P

#### HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH

In accordance with federal law, it is the policy of the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") to prohibit discrimination against, segregation of, or stigmatization of, homeless children and youth. The Board authorizes the Administration to establish regulations setting forth procedures necessary to implement the requirements of law with respect to homeless children and youth. In the event of conflict between federal and/or state law and these administrative regulations, the provisions of law shall control.

#### Legal References:

#### State Law:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186 Duties of local and regional boards of education re school attendance. Hearings. Appeals to state board. Establishment of hearing board. Readmission. Transfers

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253 School privileges for children in certain placements, non-resident children and children in temporary shelters, homeless children and children in juvenile residential centers. Liaison to facilitate transitions between school districts and juvenile and criminal justice systems.

#### Federal Law:

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11431 <u>et seq.</u>, as amended by Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95.

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022 REVISED: 04-24-2024

8/29/2019

Technical Rev. 8/13/2024

1

Students 5550 R

#### ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH

In accordance with federal law, the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") and the Branford Public Schools (the "District") does not permit discrimination against, segregation of, or stigmatization of, homeless children and youth. The following sets forth the procedures to implement the requirements of law with respect to homeless children and youth. In the event of conflict between federal and/or state law and these regulations with respect to homeless children and youth, the provisions of law shall control.

#### I. Definitions:

- A. **Enroll and Enrollment:** includes attending classes and participating fully in school activities.
- B. **Homeless Children and Youth:** means children and youth who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, including children and youth who:
  - 1. Are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason.
  - 2. Are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations.
  - 3. Are living in emergency or transitional shelters.
  - 4. Are abandoned in hospitals.
  - 5. Have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.
  - 6. Are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings.
  - 7. Are migratory children living in the above described circumstances.
- C. **School of Origin:** means the school that a homeless child or youth attended when permanently housed or the school in which the homeless child was last enrolled. School of origin may include preschool administered by the District and, when a homeless child or youth completes the final grade level served by the school of origin, school of origin also

includes the designated receiving school at the next grade level for all feeder schools.

D. Unaccompanied Youth: means a homeless child or youth not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian.

#### II. Homeless Liaison:

- The District's Homeless Liaison is the Director of Student Services. Α.
- B. The duties of the District's Homeless Liaison include:
  - 1. Ensuring that homeless children and youth are identified by school personnel and through outreach and coordination with other entities and agencies.
  - 2. Ensuring that homeless children and youth enroll in, and have full and equal opportunity to succeed in the District's schools, including ensuring that such homeless children and youth have opportunities to meet the same challenging state academic standards as other children and youths.
  - 3. Ensuring that homeless families, children, and youths receive educational services for which such families, children and youth are eligible, including services through Head Start and Even Start, early intervention services under Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and preschool programs administered by the District.
  - 4. Ensuring that parents and guardians of homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth receive referrals to health care services, dental services, mental health and substance abuse services, housing services, and other appropriate services.
  - 5. Ensuring that parents and guardians of homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth are informed of educational and related opportunities available to homeless children and youth, including extracurricular activities, and that parents and guardians of homeless children and youth are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children.
  - 6. Ensuring that public notice of the educational rights of homeless children under the McKinney-Vento Act is disseminated in locations frequented by parents, guardians, and unaccompanied youth in a manner and form that is understandable to them.
  - 7. Ensuring that enrollment disputes are mediated in accordance with the McKinney-Vento Act, including carrying out the initial dispute

2024 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved. 350236v14

- resolution process and ensuring that homeless students are immediately enrolled pending resolution of any enrollment dispute.
- 8. Ensuring that parent(s)/guardian(s) of homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth are fully informed of all transportation services, including transportation to and from the school of origin, and are assisted in accessing those services.
- 9. Assisting homeless children and youth in enrolling in school and accessing school services and removing barriers to enrollment and retention due to outstanding fees, fines or absences.
- 10. Ensuring that students who are English learners/multilingual learners are not deterred or discouraged from applying and/or accessing special academic programs and offerings, including advanced courses and programs, because they are English learners/multilingual learners or because they have interrupted formal schooling due to work-related mobility.
- 11. Informing parent(s)/guardian(s) of homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth, school personnel, and others of the rights of such students.
- 12. Assisting homeless children and youth who do not have immunizations or immunization/medical records to obtain necessary immunizations or immunization/medical records.
- 13. Assisting unaccompanied youth in placement/enrollment decisions, including considering the unaccompanied youth's wishes in those decisions, and providing notice to the unaccompanied youth of the right to appeal such decisions.
- 14. Ensuring that high school age homeless children and youth receive assistance from counselors to advise such youths on preparation and readiness for college, including informing such children and youths of their status as independent students under the Higher Education Act of 1965 and that they may obtain assistance from the district to receive verification of this status for purposes of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).
- 15. Ensuring collaboration with community and school personnel responsible for providing education and related support services to homeless children and youth.
- 16. Collaborating with and participating in professional development and technical assistance activities offered by the State Office of the Coordinator for the Education of Homeless Children and Youth.

2024 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved. 350236v14

- 17. Ensuring that school personnel providing services to homeless children and youth receive professional development and other technical assistance activities regarding the McKinney-Vento Act.
- 18. Ensuring that unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school and that procedures are implemented to identify and remove barriers that prevent them from receiving credit for full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed at a prior school, in accordance with state, local, and school policies.
- 19. Ensuring that information about enrollment, classes, and other educational programs and activities is made accessible to parents and guardians who have limited English proficiency.
- 20. With appropriate training, affirming that a child or youth who is eligible for and participating in a program provided by the District, or the immediate family of such a child or youth, is eligible for homeless assistance programs administered under Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Act.

#### III. Enrollment of Homeless Children and Youth:

- A. Enrollment of homeless children and youth may not be denied or delayed due to the lack of any document normally required for enrollment.

  However, administrators shall require the parent/guardian or unaccompanied youth to provide contact information prior to enrollment.
- B. To facilitate enrollment, administrators:
  - 1. May permit parents/guardians of homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth to sign affidavits of residency to replace typical proof of residency.
  - 2. May permit unaccompanied youth to enroll with affidavits to replace typical proof of guardianship.
  - 3. Shall refer parent/guardian/unaccompanied youth to the District's Homeless Liaison who will assist in obtaining immunizations.
  - 4. Shall contact previous schools for records and assistance with placement decisions.
  - 5. Shall maintain records so that the records are available in a timely fashion when the student enters a new school or school district.

#### IV. School Selection:

#### A. Standards for School Selection:

- 1. The District is required to make a determination as to the best interests of a homeless child or youth in making a determination as to the appropriate school of placement.
- 2. In making such a determination, the District is required to keep a homeless child or youth in the child's or youth's school of origin for the duration of homelessness when a homeless child or youth becomes homeless between academic years or during an academic year; or for the remainder of the academic year if the homeless child or youth becomes permanently housed during an academic year, to the extent feasible, unless it is against the wishes of the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth. Otherwise, the homeless child or youth shall be enrolled in a public school that non-homeless students who live in the area where the homeless child or youth is actually living are eligible to attend.
- 3. The District must presume that keeping the homeless child or youth in the school of origin is in the child's or youth's best interest unless doing so is contrary to the request of the child's or youth's parent or guardian, or in the case of an unaccompanied youth, the unaccompanied youth. In considering the child's or youth's best interest, the District must consider student-centered factors related to the child's or youth's best interest, giving priority to the request of the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth.

#### B. Procedures for Review of School Selection Recommendation:

- 1. The Principal designee of the school in which enrollment is sought shall review an enrollment request in accordance with the standards discussed above, and shall make an initial recommendation regarding same. If the Principal's or designee's recommendation is to select a placement other than the school desired by the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the homeless child or youth or the unaccompanied youth, then the Principal or designee shall refer the matter to the Superintendent or designee for review of the recommendation and the reasons therefor, and shall notify the District's Homeless Liaison of same.
- 2. The Superintendent or designee shall review the matter and consult with the District's Homeless Liaison concerning same. If the Superintendent or designee agrees with the recommendation of the Principal or designee, and a dispute remains between the District and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth about a school selection and/or enrollment decision; the Superintendent or his/her designee shall provide the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the District's decision regarding this matter, and the right to appeal such decision to the Board.

#### C. Dispute Resolution Process:

- 1. The District's Homeless Liaison shall be responsible for promoting objective and expeditious dispute resolutions, and adherence to these administrative regulations.
- 2. If the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth disputes the school placement decision or enrollment, the District must immediately enroll the homeless child or youth in the school in which enrollment is sought, pending resolution of the dispute. The homeless child or youth shall also have the right to all appropriate educational services, including transportation to and from the school in which enrollment is sought, while the dispute is pending.
- 3. If necessary, the District's Homeless Liaison shall assist parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth with completion of the necessary appeal paperwork required to file for an appeal to the Board, and provide the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth with a copy of Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186(b).
- 4. Not later than ten (10) days after receipt of an appeal to the Board by a parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth, the District shall hold a hearing before the Board concerning such appeal, and such hearing shall be shall be conducted in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186(b).
- 5. If the Board finds in favor of the Superintendent or designee, a parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth or unaccompanied youth may appeal the Board's decision to the State Board of Education within twenty (20) days of receipt of the Board's written decision, in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186(b). If necessary, the District's Homeless Liaison shall assist a parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth or unaccompanied youth with filing the necessary appeal paperwork to the State Board of Education. The homeless child or youth or unaccompanied youth shall remain in his or her school of origin pending resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals.

#### V. Services:

- A. Homeless children and youth shall be provided with services comparable to those offered other students in the selected school including:
  - 1. Title I services or similar state or local programs, educational programs for students with disabilities, and preschool programs.
  - 2. Language assistance services for students who have limited English proficiency to enable students who are English learners/multilingual learners to meaningfully participate in the educational programs.
  - 3. Transportation services.
  - 4. Vocational and technical education.

- 5. Programs for gifted and talented students.
- 6. School nutrition programs.
- 7. Before and after school programs.
- B. The District shall coordinate with local social service agencies, other service providers, housing assistance providers and other school districts to ensure that homeless children and youth have access and reasonable proximity to available education and support services.

#### VI. Transportation:

- A. The District shall provide transportation comparable to that available to other students.
- B. Transportation shall be provided, at a parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth's request, to and from the school of origin for a homeless child or youth. Transportation shall be provided for the entire time the child or youth is homeless and until the end of any academic year in which they move into permanent housing. Transportation to the school of origin shall also be provided during pending disputes. The District's Homeless Liaison shall request transportation to and from the school of origin for an unaccompanied youth. Parents and unaccompanied youth shall be informed of this right to transportation before they select a school for attendance.
- C. To comply with these requirements:
  - 1. Parents/guardians, schools, and the District's Homeless Liaison shall use the district transportation form to process transportation requests.
  - 2. If the homeless child or youth is living and attending school in this District, the District shall arrange transportation.
  - 3. If the homeless child or youth is living in this District but attending school in another, or attending school in this District and living in another, the District will follow the inter-district transportation agreement to determine the responsibility and costs for such transportation. If there is no inter-district transportation agreement, the District shall confer with the other school district's Homeless Liaison to determine an apportionment of the responsibility and costs.

- 4. If no mutually agreeable arrangement can be reached, then the District shall:
  - (a) arrange transportation immediately;
  - (b) bring the matter to the attention of the State Coordinator for the Education of Homeless Children and Youth; and
  - (c) ensure that such disputes do not interfere with the homeless child or youth attending school.

#### VII. Records:

An unaccompanied youth, as defined in section I.D, above, is entitled to knowledge of and access to all educational, medical, or similar records in the cumulative record of such unaccompanied youth maintained by this District.

#### VIII. Contact Information:

A. Local Contact: for further information, contact:

Director of Student Services
Department of Student Services
12 Melrose Avenue
Branford, CT 06405
504-ADA@branfordschools.org

B. State Contact: for further information or technical assistance, contact:

Louis Tallarita, State Coordinator Connecticut Department of Education 450 Columbus Boulevard Hartford, CT 06103 (860) 807-2058 Louis.Tallarita@ct.gov

#### Legal References:

State Law:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186 Duties of local and regional boards of education re school attendance. Hearings. Appeals to state board. Establishment of hearing board. Readmission. Transfers

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253 School privileges for children in certain placements, non-resident children and children in temporary shelters, homeless children and children in juvenile residential centers. Liaison to facilitate transitions between school districts and juvenile and criminal justice systems.

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-76d Duties and powers of boards of education to provide special education programs and services. Medicaid enrollment, participation and billing requirements. Development of individualized education program. Planning and placement team meetings. Public agency placements; apportionment of costs. Relationship of insurance to special education costs. Prohibition on punishing members of planning and placement teams and birth-to-three service coordinators and qualified personnel for certain conduct.

#### Federal Law:

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11431 et seq., as amended by Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95.

United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, Protecting Access to Education for Unaccompanied Children (June 2023).

United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, Protecting Access to Education for Migratory Children (June 2023).

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022 REVISED: 04-24-2024

8/29/2019 Technical Rev. 9/15/2020

### DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS UNDER CONNECTICUT GENERAL STATUTES SECTION 10-186

- (1) If any board of education denies such accommodations, the parent or guardian of any child who is denied schooling, or an emancipated minor, a pupil eighteen years of age or older or an unaccompanied youth who is denied schooling, or an agent or officer charged with the enforcement of the laws concerning attendance at school, may, in writing request a hearing by the board of education. The board of education may
  - (A) conduct the hearing,
  - (B) designate a subcommittee of the board composed of three board members to conduct the hearing, or
  - (C) establish a local impartial hearing board of one or more persons not members of the board of education to conduct the hearing.

The board, subcommittee or local impartial hearing board shall give such person a hearing not later than ten days after receipt of the written request, make a stenographic record or tape recording of the hearing and make a finding not later than ten days after the hearing. Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of sections 4-176e to 4-180a, inclusive, and section 4-181a. Any child, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older or unaccompanied youth who is denied accommodations on the basis of residency may continue in attendance in the school district at the request of the parent or guardian of such child or emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older or unaccompanied youth, pending a hearing pursuant to this subdivision. The party claiming ineligibility for school accommodations shall have the burden of proving such ineligibility by a preponderance of the evidence, except in cases of denial of schooling based on residency, the party denied schooling shall have the burden of proving residency by a preponderance of the evidence, unless the party denied schooling is claiming that he or she is a homeless child or youth, as defined in 42 USC 11434a, as amended from time to time, in which case, the party claiming ineligibility based on residency shall have the burden of proving that the party denied schooling is not a homeless child or youth by a preponderance of the evidence in accordance with the provisions of 42 USC 11431, et seq., as amended from time to time.

(2) Any homeless child or youth who is denied accommodations by a board of education as the result of a determination by such board, or a subcommittee of the board or local impartial hearing board, that the child is not entitled to school accommodations in the district, shall continue in attendance or be immediately enrolled in the school selected by the child in the school district pursuant to 42 USC 11432(g)(3), as amended from time to time. The board of education for such school district shall (A) provide, in accordance with the provisions of 42 USC 11432(g)(3)(E)(ii), as amended from time to time, the homeless child or youth or the parent or guardian of such homeless child or youth with (i) a written explanation of the reasons for the denial of accommodations that is in a manner and form understandable to such homeless child or youth or parent or guardian, and (ii) information regarding the right to appeal the decision of the denial of accommodations pursuant to subdivision (3) of this subsection, and (B) refer, in accordance with the provisions of 42

USC 11432(g)(3)(E)(iii), as amended from time to time, the homeless child or youth or the parent or guardian of such homeless child or youth to the liaison, designated pursuant to 42 USC 11432(g)(1)(J)(ii), as amended from time to time, who is responsible for carrying out the duties described in 42 USC 11432(g)(6)(A), as amended from time to time.

- Any such parent, guardian, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older, unaccompanied youth, or agent or officer, aggrieved by the finding shall, upon request, be provided with a transcript of the hearing within thirty days after such request and may take an appeal from the finding to the State Board of Education. A copy of each notice of appeal shall be filed simultaneously with the local or regional board of education and the State Board of Education. Any child, emancipated minor or pupil eighteen years of age or older or unaccompanied youth who is denied accommodations by a board of education as the result of a determination by such board, or a subcommittee of the board or local impartial hearing board, that the child is not a resident of the school district and therefore is not entitled to school accommodations in the district may continue in attendance in the school district at the request of the parent or guardian of such child or such minor or pupil, pending a determination of such appeal, except any homeless child or youth shall be entitled to continue in attendance in the school district during all available appeals pursuant to 42 USC 11432(g)(2)(E). If an appeal is not taken to the State Board of Education within twenty days of the mailing of the finding to the aggrieved party, the decision of the board, subcommittee or local impartial hearing board shall be final. The local or regional board of education shall, within ten days after receipt of notice of an appeal, forward the record of the hearing to the State Board of Education. The State Board of Education shall, on receipt of a written request for a hearing made in accordance with the provisions of this subsection, establish an impartial hearing board of one or more persons to hold a public hearing in the local or regional school district in which the cause of the complaint arises. Members of the hearing board may be employees of the state Department of Education or may be qualified persons from outside the department. No member of the board of education under review nor any employee of such board of education shall be a member of the hearing board. Members of the hearing board, other than those employed by the state of Connecticut, shall be paid reasonable fees and expenses as established by the State Board of Education within the limits of available appropriations. Such hearing board may examine witnesses and shall maintain a verbatim record of all formal sessions of the hearing. Either party to the hearing may request that the hearing board join all interested parties to the hearing, or the hearing board may join any interested party on its own motion. The hearing board shall have no authority to make a determination of the rights and responsibilities of a board of education if such board is not a party to the hearing. The hearing board may render a determination of actual residence of any child, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older or unaccompanied youth where residency is at issue.
- (4) The hearing board shall render its decision within forty-five days after receipt of the notice of appeal except that an extension may be granted by the Commissioner of Education upon an application by a party or the hearing board describing circumstances related to the hearing which require an extension.

(5) If, after the hearing, the hearing board finds that any child is illegally or unreasonably denied schooling, the hearing board shall order the board of education under whose jurisdiction it has been found such child should be attending school to make arrangements to enable the child to attend public school. Except in the case of a residency determination, the finding of the local or regional board of education, subcommittee of such board or a local impartial hearing board shall be upheld unless it is determined by the hearing board that the finding was arbitrary, capricious or unreasonable. If such school officers fail to take action upon such order in any case in which such child is currently denied schooling and no suitable provision is made for such child within fifteen days after receipt of the order and in all other cases, within thirty days after receipt of the order, there shall be a forfeiture of the money appropriated by the state for the support of schools amounting to fifty dollars for each child for each day such child is denied schooling. If the hearing board makes a determination that the child was not a resident of the school district and therefore not entitled to school accommodations from such district, the board of education may assess tuition against the parent or guardian of the child or the emancipated minor or pupil eighteen years of age or older based on the following: One one-hundredeightieth of the town's net current local educational expenditure, as defined in section 10-261, per pupil multiplied by the number of days of school attendance of the child in the district while not entitled to school accommodations provided by that district. The local board of education may seek to recover the amount of the assessment through available civil remedies.

#### SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF ENROLLMENT DECISION

[Month] , 20

#### VIA HAND DELIVERY AND U.S. MAIL

[Insert Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth] [Insert Home Address]

Re: Notification of Enrollment Decision

Dear [Parent/Guardian or Unaccompanied Youth]:

After reviewing your request to enroll the student(s) listed above [name(s)], the enrollment request is denied. This determination is based upon the following factors:

[List factors]

Under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, you have the right to appeal this decision by completing the form attached to this notice or by contacting the school district's homeless education liaison:

Director of Student Services Department of Student Services 12 Melrose Avenue Branford, CT 06405 504-ADA@branfordschools.org 203-488-5000

In addition, the student listed above has the right to immediately enroll in the school of choice pending resolution of the dispute. You may provide written or verbal evidence to support your position. You may seek the assistance of advocates or attorneys at your own expense; however, you may qualify for free legal services. To inquire about free legal assistance, please call Statewide Legal Services at 1-800-453-3320. You may also contact the state coordinator for homeless education:

Louis Tallarita, State Coordinator State Department of Education 450 Columbus Boulevard Hartford, CT 06103 (860) 807-2058 Louis.Tallarita@ct.gov A copy of the dispute resolution process under Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186 is attached to this notice.

Please contact the District's Homeless Liaison listed above if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

[Name] Superintendent of Schools

cc: [Superintendent of Schools in which enrollment is sought, if appropriate]

15

## SAMPLE NOTIFICATION OF DECISION TO APPEAL EDUCATIONAL PLACEMENT

when a dispute arises. If you	need assistance in preparing this form, you may meet with on,, who can be reached at
Person completing form:	
Relation to Student:	
Contact Information:	
General Statutes to appeal the School]. I have been provided information for the District's l	ucation Hearing under Section 10-186 of the Connecticut enrollment decision made by [Name of District], [Name of I with a written explanation of the District's decision, contact nomeless education liaison, and a copy of the Dispute necticut General Statutes Section 10-186.
Name	Date

Optional. You may also include a written explanation to support your appeal in the space below or provide your explanation verbally to the District's Homeless Liaison.

### SAMPLE NOTIFICATION OF HEARING REGARDING ENROLLMENT DISPUTE

[Month] \_\_, 20\_\_

#### VIA HAND DELIVERY AND U.S. MAIL

[Insert Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth] [Insert Home Address]

Re: Educational Placement

Dear [Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth]:

You have requested a hearing before the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") regarding the educational placement of [insert name(s) of student(s)] at [name of school]. The Board will conduct a hearing regarding your claim on [date] at [time]. The hearing will be held at the offices of the Board, which are located at 185 Damascus Road.

The hearing will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-186 of the Connecticut General Statutes, a copy of which is enclosed. The hearing will be conducted in executive session, and the Board will make either a tape recording or a stenographic record of the hearing. You may be represented by counsel or by an advocate, at your expense, if you so desire; however, you may qualify for free legal services. To inquire about free legal assistance, please call Statewide Legal Services at 1-800-453-3320.

Please contact the District's Homeless Liaison, [insert name], if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

[Name] Superintendent of Schools

cc: [Superintendent of Schools in which enrollment is sought, if appropriate]

# **STUDENT RESIDENCY AFFIDAVIT** [PARENT/GUARDIAN FORM]

[Name of District]	
Name of student:	Birthdate:
Name and Location of School	ol Last Attended:
Ι,	declare and affirm as follows:
I am of legal age and	believe in the obligations of an oath.
I am the parent/legal	guardian/caregiver of (name of student)
who is of school age and is s	eeking admission to [School District].
Since(date	), (name of student) has not had a
permanent home. The studen	nt is currently staying at
	(may list multiple addresses, if
applicable). The student has	been staying there since (date).
This location is:  If the location is share the student is living in such h	a shelter a motel/hotel a campsite shared housing with other persons other  ed housing with other persons, please specify the reason why nousing:
_	

From (date) to (date)	).
I regularly receive my mail at:	
I am currently staying at the following a	ddress(es):
I plan	n to stay at this/these location(s) until:
(date). I can be reached at the following	telephone number:
I can be reached for emergencies at:	
I authorize school district official	ls to contact(case
worker/shelter staff/other) at	to obtain further information in order
to verify the information contained in the	is affidavit and in order to coordinate necessary
services for the student.	
I declare under penalty of perjury information provided is true and correct	y under the laws of Connecticut that the and of my own personal knowledge.
	AFFIANT,
	Signature of Affiant
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of, 20	Print Name of Affiant
NOTARY PUBLIC	<u> </u>

Prior to staying at this location, the student was staying at

# **STUDENT RESIDENCY AFFIDAVIT** [UNACCOMPANIED YOUTH FORM]

[Name of District]	
Name of student:	Birthdate:
Name and Location of School Last At	tended:
Ι,	declare and affirm as follows:
I,[School District].	am of school age and is seeking admission to
Since(date), I,	have not had a permanent
home. I am currently staying at	
(may list multiple addresses, if applica	able). I have been staying there since
(date).	
This location is:  a shelter a motel/ a camps shared h other	hotel
If the location is shared housing	g with other persons, please specify the reason why
the student is living in such housing:	
Prior to staying at this location	, I was staying at
From (date) to (da	te).

I regularly receive my mail at:	·
I am currently staying at the following ac	
I plar	n to stay at this/these location(s) until:
(date). I can be reached at the following	telephone number:
I can be reached for emergencies at:	
I authorize school district official	s to contact (case
worker/shelter staff/other) at	to obtain further information in order
to verify the information contained in thi	s affidavit and in order to coordinate necessary
services for me.	
I declare under penalty of perjury information provided is true and correct a	under the laws of Connecticut that the and of my own personal knowledge.
	AFFIANT,
	Signature of Affiant
	Print Name of Affiant
Subscribed and sworn to before me	
this day of, 20	
NOTARY PUBLIC	

# **AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION** [PARENT FORM]

[District]	
	sworn upon oath and based on my personal are following information regarding [name of entation for the following:
Proof of residency Proof of guardianship Proof of identity Birth Certificate	Immunization Record School Health Record School Records
I am of legal age and believe	in the obligations of an oath.
I am unable to present a copy following reasons:	of the document(s) requested above for the
The name and location of the	last school the student attended is
provide a copy to the District. I under assist me in obtaining any such immu	n the necessary immunization and health records and erstand that the Homeless Liaison is available to unization or health records. The Homeless Liaison is be reached at
	AFFIANT,
	Signature of Affiant
	Print Name of Affiant
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of, 20	
NOTARY PUBLIC	

# **AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION** [UNACCOMPANIED YOUTH FORM]

[District]	
	n upon oath and based on my personal lowing information regarding my missing ng:
Proof of residency Proof of guardianship Proof of identity Birth Certificate	Immunization Record School Health Record School Records
I am unable to present a copy of th following reasons:	ne document(s) requested above for the
The name and location of the last s	school I attended is
provide a copy to the District. I understan	necessary immunization and health records and ad that the Homeless Liaison is available to tion or health records. The Homeless Liaison is eached at
	AFFIANT,
	Signature of Affiant
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of, 20	Print Name of Affiant
NOTARY PUBLIC	-



SStudents 5650P

#### SUICIDE PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION

The Branford Board of Education (the "Board") recognizes that suicide is a complex issue and that schools are not mental health treatment centers. The Branford Public Schools (the "District") cannot be expected to thoroughly evaluate and eliminate suicidal risk. Nevertheless, school personnel may become aware of specific factual circumstances in which a student has communicated a suicidal intent or other specific circumstances in which a student is perceived by school staff to be at risk for suicide. In such cases, the Board is committed to respond in a supportive manner, both aggressively and immediately, to a student who has attempted, has threatened, or who communicates that they are considering attempting suicide.

Any Board employee who has knowledge that a student has made a suicidal threat, or attempt or exhibited suicidal ideation must immediately report this information to the building principal or designee, who will, in turn, notify the appropriate Pupil Personnel Services staff. PPS Staff, with administrative assistance, if necessary, will contact the student's family and appropriate resources within and outside the school system as permitted by law. The Board further directs the school staff to refer students who come to their attention as being at risk of attempting suicide for professional assessment and treatment services outside of the school. Information concerning a student's suicide attempt, threat or risk will be shared with others only as permitted by state and federal law.

In recognition of the need for youth suicide prevention procedures, the Board directs the Superintendent or designee to adopt and maintain administrative regulations addressing youth suicide prevention.

Training will be provided for teachers, other school staff, and students regarding the prevention of and response to youth suicide.

#### Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221 (f) Public Act 23-167, "An Act Concerning Transparency in Education."

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022 REVISED:03-20-2024 10/4/2023 Students 5650R

### ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING SUICIDE PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION

The Branford Board of Education (the "Board") recognizes that suicide is a complex issue and that schools are not mental health treatment centers. The Branford Public Schools (the "District") cannot be expected to thoroughly evaluate and eliminate suicidal risk. Nevertheless, school personnel may become aware of specific factual circumstances in which a student has communicated a suicidal intent or other specific circumstances in which a student is at risk for suicide, and in such cases, the Board and the District are committed to respond in a supportive manner, both aggressively and immediately, to a student who has attempted, has threatened, or who communicates that they are considering attempting suicide. The following procedures shall be implemented toward this end.

#### Management of Suicidal Risk

- I. Any staff member who becomes aware of a student who may be at risk of suicide must immediately notify the building principal or designee. This must be done even if the student has confided in the staff person and asked that the communication be kept confidential. The principal or designee will then notify the appropriate Student Services staff and related school team established to address student mental health needs.
- II. The Student Services staff member, or when appropriate other mental health professional comparably trained in assessment of suicidal ideation, shall interview the student, consider available background information and determine whether the student is "at-risk" or in "imminent danger."
- III. If the student is assessed to be "at-risk":
- A. The building principal or designee, in consultation with the appropriate Student Services staff member(s) or other mental health professional, shall notify the student's parent/guardian and request a meeting with them as soon as possible, preferably that same day.
- B. When the parent/guardian arrives at school, the building principal or designee, and appropriate Student Services staff member or other mental health professional, shall meet with the parent/guardian to discuss:
  - 1. the seriousness of the situation;
  - 2. the need for an immediate suicide risk evaluation at a medical or mental health facility, or other appropriate evaluation(s);

- 3. the need for continued monitoring of the student at home if the student is released following the evaluation;
- 4. referral to appropriate professional services outside the school system; and
- 5. a request for the parent/guardian to sign a release of information form permitting communication between the school and the facility to which the student will be taken, the student's therapist (if any) and other appropriate individuals.
- C. The building principal or designee shall document in writing the course of events, including what transpired at the meeting, and the outcome.
- D. The building principal or designee may notify other staff, as necessary to promote the safety of the student and others.
- E. The building principal or designee may refer the student to the school's Child Study Team, Mental Health Team, **Crisis Intervention Team**, Student Assistance Team, Planning and Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for further consultation and planning.
- F. The building principal or designee shall monitor the student's progress and shall consult as necessary with family, school staff, and outside professionals, if permitted by state and federal law.
- IV. If the student is assessed to be "in imminent danger":
- A. The building principal or designee shall ensure that the student is not left alone.
- B. The building principal or designee shall notify the parent/guardian and request that the student be picked up at school and taken to a medical or mental health professional for thorough suicidal risk evaluation.
- C. When the parent/guardian arrives at school, the building principal or designee, and appropriate Student Services staff member or other mental health professional, shall meet with the parent/guardian to discuss:
  - 1. the seriousness of the situation;
  - 2. the need for an immediate suicide risk evaluation at a medical or mental health facility, or other appropriate evaluation(s);
  - 3. the need for continued monitoring of the student at home if the student is released following the evaluation;

- 4. referral to appropriate professional services outside the school system; and
- 5. a request for the parent/guardian to sign a release of information form permitting communication between the school and the facility to which the student will be taken, the student's therapist and other appropriate individuals.

In addition, the building principal or designee:

- a. shall document in writing the course of events, including what transpired at the meeting, and the outcome.
- b. shall inform the principal of the course of events and the outcome.
- c. may notify other staff, as necessary to protect the student and others.
- g. shall refer the student to the school's Child Study Team, Mental Health Team, Crisis Intervention Team, Student Assistance Team, Planning and Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for further consultation and planning.
- D. In instances where the parent/guardian is unable to come to school after being notified that their child has been identified as "in imminent danger" and the student must be picked up from school and taken for a thorough suicidal risk evaluation, the building principal or designee shall notify the parent/guardian of the District's intent to and arrange transport of the student to an appropriate evaluation/treatment site by means of emergency vehicle (e.g., ambulance or police cruiser). The building principal or designee shall arrange for an emergency vehicle to transport the student to the hospital or an appropriate mental health facility; shall inform hospital/facility staff of known information pertaining to the situation; and shall plan follow-up in relation to hospital staff or mental health facility staff decisions as to how to proceed.

In addition, the Student Services staff member:

- 1. shall provide, over the telephone, information to the parent/guardian as to available resources outside and within the school system, and shall plan follow-up contacts;
- 2. may notify police if the student poses a threat to the safety of self or others, or as dictated by other circumstance;.
- 3. shall document in writing the course of events and the outcome;

- 4. shall inform the principal of the course of events and the outcome;
- 5. may notify other staff, as necessary to promote the safety of the student and others; and
- 6. shall refer the student to the school's Child Study Team, Mental Health Team, Crisis Intervention Team, Student Assistance Team, Planning and Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for further consultation and planning.
- E. If the parent/guardian does not agree with the school's determination that the student is in imminent danger or for any other reason refuses to take action, the Student Services staff member shall meet with the building principal to develop an immediate plan focused on the safety of the student. The principal or designee shall document in writing the course of events and the outcome.
- F. When a student assessed to have been "in imminent danger" returns to the school, the Student Services staff member or the appropriate school-based team (if such referral has been made) shall coordinate consultation with outside professionals, supportive services in school, and changes in the instructional program, when necessary and as permitted by state and federal law.
- V. When addressing students who may be "at risk" or "in imminent danger" of suicide, the Student Services staff member shall consider, in light of the particular circumstances, whether a report to the Department of Children and Families is necessary and/or appropriate in accordance with statutory mandated reporting obligations, Board policy, and/or applicable law.

#### Suicide Education/Prevention - Students and Staff

- I. As part of the District's Health Education Curriculum and Developmental Guidance Curriculum, students will be educated regarding suicide risk factors and danger signals, and how they might appropriately respond if confronted with suicidal behavior, verbalizations, or thoughts.
- II. Annually, in-service training for school staff will be held in each school building to discuss suicide risk factors, danger signals, and the procedures outlined in these regulations.

#### Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221(f)

ADOPTED	•
REVISED:	

9/29/2024



#### **Community/Board Operation**

1800P

#### **USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES**

In accordance with Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239, the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") may permit the use of any school facility for nonprofit educational or community purposes whether or not school is in session. The Board may also grant the temporary use of any school facility for public, educational or other purposes, including the holding of political discussion, at such time the facility is not in use for school purposes. In addition, the Board shall grant such use for any purpose of voting under the provisions of Title 9 of the Connecticut General Statutes whether or not school is in session. In accordance with 20 U.S.C. § 7905, the Board shall not deny equal access to or a fair opportunity to meet, or otherwise discriminate, against any group officially affiliated with the Boy Scouts of America (or any other youth group listed as a patriotic society in Title 36 of the United States Code) that wishes to conduct a meeting using school facilities pursuant to this policy. Such uses shall be governed by the following rules and procedures, and shall be subject to such restrictions as the Superintendent or his/her designee considers expedient.

Consistent with this policy, the Superintendent shall develop and promulgate Administrative Regulations and associated forms governing use of school buildings and facilities by community and other groups. Since the primary purpose of school facilities is for educational activities, such activities will have priority over all other requested uses.

#### A. Application Procedures

Applications for use of facilities shall be submitted in accordance with the Administrative Regulations.

Groups requesting use of school buildings and facilities must identify the specific facilities desired, and approval will be for those specific facilities only. All school equipment on the premises shall remain in the charge and control of the building principal or responsible administrator, and shall not be used without the express written permission of the administrator.

Approval of school facilities by the principal or other responsible party may be revoked at any time by the Superintendent or designee.

#### B. Eligible Organizations and Priority of Use

Requests for use of school district facilities will be made according to the following guidelines regarding priority of usage of such facilities:

#### Order of priority:

- 1. School-sponsored programs and activities.
- 2. Activities of school-related organizations (*e.g.*, PTA, Booster Clubs, After Graduation Committees and similar organizations).
- 3. Town department or agency activities and nonprofit youth organizations operating within the town.
- 4. Activities of nonprofit organizations operating within the Town, other than those described in the categories above.
- 5. Activities of for-profit organizations operating within the Town.
- 6. Out-of-town organizations.

#### C. Restrictions on Use of School Facilities

The following restrictions shall apply to the use of school facilities:

- 1. Illegal activities will not be tolerated.
- 2. Use or possession of tobacco, vapor products, marijuana, alcoholic beverages, or unauthorized controlled substances shall not be permitted on school property.
- 3. Refreshments may not be prepared, served or consumed without the prior approval of the responsible administrator. Notwithstanding, only those beverages permitted by state law may be sold during the school day. The responsible administrator may permit other beverages to be sold at the location of events occurring after the end of the regular school day or on the weekend as long as they are not sold from a vending machine or at a school store. Upon approval by the administrator, refreshments may be prepared, served and consumed only in areas designated by the responsible administrator. All groups will be required to pay for food service personnel if using school kitchen equipment and spaces.
- 4. Obscene advertising, decorations or materials shall not be permitted on school property.

- 5. Advertising, decorations, or other materials that promote the use of illegal drugs, tobacco products, vapor products, or alcoholic beverages shall not be permitted.
- 6. Activities that are disruptive to the school environment are not permitted.
- 7. Subletting rented time to other organizations shall not be permitted.

Any violation of this Policy or any applicable Administrative Regulations may result in permanent revocation of the privilege to use school facilities against the organization and/or individuals involved.

#### D. Fees and Other Costs

Users of school facilities shall be responsible for the fees and costs set out in a fee schedule established by the Superintendent. The following guidelines shall be incorporated into such fee schedule:

	Category	Fee
1.	School-sponsored programs and activities.	No fee or associated costs*
2.	Activities of school-related organizations (e.g., PTO, Booster Clubs, After Graduation Committees and similar organizations).	No fee or associated costs*
3.	Town department or agency activities and nonprofit youth organizations operating within the town.	No fee or associated costs*
4.	Activities of nonprofit organizations operating within the Town, other than those described in the categories above.	No fee or associated costs* Associated costs will be applied when facilities are used outside of normal operating hours.
5.	Activities of for-profit organizations operating within the Town.	Rental fee and associated costs
6.	Out-of-town organizations.	Rental fee and associated costs
7.	Large Events	Fees will be evaluated based on the needs of the event regardless of categorization above.

Use of the facility outside of building hours of any category above requires prior approval from the Director of Facilities or designee and is contingent upon available staffing and budget.

#### **Definitions**

"Associated costs" shall include, but shall not be limited to, fees for the services of any custodial personnel, food service personnel, security personnel, technology, or other personnel deemed by the responsible administrator to be necessary in connection with the use of a school district facility. Such costs shall be at the rates set forth in the fee schedule. Rental fees and/or associated costs otherwise applicable may be waived by the Board of Education or designee if such waiver is deemed by the Board of Education or designee to be in the best interest of the school system and/or the Town.

"Rental fees" are in addition to the associated costs and are intended to partially offset wear and tear and equipment repair/replacement costs.

"Large events" are events where more than 400 attendees are expected. These events do not include regularly scheduled meetings, BPS practices, approved school performances, or BPS games. \*Fundraisers or other large activities sponsored by any category will incur large event fees if more than 400 attendees are expected unless they receive a fee waiver from the Board.

### E. Responsibility for Damage to Property or Loss of Property

In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting such use must agree to assume responsibility for any damage to and/or theft or loss of any school district property arising out of the use of the facilities. Organizations in categories 4-7 shall provide a Certificate of Insurance with the Town of Branford's minimum insurance requirements and the Branford Board of Education named as additional insured.

#### F. Health and Safety Protocols

In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting such use must agree to abide by all health and safety protocols in place by the school district at the time of use, including but not limited to protocols relating to cleaning of the facilities, signage, and health screenings of individuals requesting access to the facilities. Organizations and individuals are responsible for securing necessary permits required by state and town law and health and safety code.

#### **Legal References:**

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239 Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-215f Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221q Conn. Gen. Stat. Title 9

Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7905 Patriotic and National Organizations, 36 U.S.C. § 1010 et seq.

ADOPTED: 10.19.2022

REVISED:



Administration 2200 P

## RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION

#### I. INTRODUCTION

The Branford Board of Education (the "Board") complies with all state and federal laws and regulations regarding the retention, storage and disposition of records. The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing administrative regulations concerning the retention, storage, and disposition of records and the dissemination of such administrative regulations to all school officials, employees, and individuals granted access to the computer systems and/or networks of the Branford Public Schools (the "District") and/or who send electronic messages as part of their work for the District. Collectively, all individuals granted access to the District's computer systems are referred to as the "Users".

#### II. RETENTION OF RECORDS

The District shall comply with all minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records Retention Schedules for public records, as issued by the Office of the Public Records Administrator for the State of Connecticut ("OPRA"). Retention requirements apply to the official record copy of a public record and are based on the content and function of the public record, not the media type. As such, the same record retention period that applies to paper records applies to electronically stored information. Therefore, like paper records, the content and function of an electronic record, including electronic messages, determine the retention period for that document.

If records are kept in both electronic and hard copy format, the District shall designate which record is the official record copy. The designated official copy shall be the legally recognized copy maintained for record retention purposes.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by District officials and employees, all District officials and employees have a duty to preserve all records and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or may be anticipated to involve future litigation. Record preservation under such circumstances shall only be required after receipt of formal written notice of such requirement by the Superintendent or designee.

## III. USE OF ELECTRONIC MESSAGES AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

The Board has installed computers and a computer network(s), including Internet access and electronic messaging systems, on Board premises and may provide other electronic devices that can access the network(s) and/or have the ability to send and receive messages with an operating system or network communication framework. Devices include but are not limited to personal computing devices, cellular phones, Smartphones, network access devices, radios, personal cassette players, CD players, tablets, walkie-talkies, personal gaming systems, Bluetooth speakers, personal data assistants, and other electronic signaling devices. Electronic messaging systems include mobile, chat, and instant message; cloud collaboration platforms, including internal chat, peer-to-peer messaging systems, and draft email message transfer; and products that have the ability to create duration-based or subjective removal of content (such as Snapchat), and security focused platforms (such as Signal). The Board's computers, computer networks, electronic devices, Internet access and electronic messaging systems are referred to collectively as "the computer systems" and are provided in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for our students and the business operations of the District.

Electronic messages sent by Users as part of their work and/or by using the District's computer systems and/or network(s) are not private communications and are potentially subject to disclosure, regardless of whether the messages are sent using personal devices or the District's computer systems. Users must understand that the Board has reserved the right to conduct monitoring of the District's computer systems and may do so *despite* the assignment to individual Users of passwords for system security. Any password systems implemented by the District are designed solely to provide system security from unauthorized users, not to provide privacy to the individual system User.

The 'computer systems' security aspects, message delete function and personal passwords may be bypassed for monitoring purposes. Therefore, Users must be aware that they should not have any expectation of personal privacy in the use of these computer systems. This provision applies to any and all uses of the District's computer systems, including any incidental personal use permitted in accordance with the Board's policy and regulations regarding computer use by Users.

Any retained messages may be retrieved for a variety of purposes, including but not limited to as part of routine monitoring by the District, an employee investigation, a search for documents pursuant to a Freedom of Information Act request, a formal discovery process as part of litigation, or other legal processes such as a response to a subpoena. Users should bear in mind that electronic messages may be retained at different locations within the computer systems and/or devices and that these messages are subject to retrieval, regardless of whether the User has deleted such messages from the User's or the District's accounts. Consequently, Users should use discretion when using computers or other electronic technology to send, record or retain electronic messages and information.

#### IV. DISPOSITION OF RECORDS

The disposition of records, or the destruction or transfer of records to the custody of another entity, shall only occur in accordance with relevant state and federal laws and guidelines established by the OPRA. The District shall also follow the OPRA's specific protocols for the disposition of permanent, historical and archival records. If a record does not appear on a records retention schedule, the District shall contact the OPRA for further guidance before disposing of any such record.

### Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-200(5); 1-211; 1-213(b)(3)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 7-109

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 11-8 et seq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Office of the Public Records Administrator

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04, Electronic Records Management (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-1, Electronic Records (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-2, Digital Imaging (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 05, Disposition of Public Records (Nov.. 2011)

OPRA, Public Records Memorandum 101: Disposition of Original Paper Records After Scanning (June 2024)

Connecticut State Library, State Archives ("State Archives"), State Archives Policy 01: Transfer of Historical Records to the State Archives of Other Approved Archival Repository (October 15, 2019)

Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

OPRA, Records Disposition Authorization, Form RC-075 (revised 12/2021)

OPRA, Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Annual Certification for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-045 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Certification for Disposition of Original Permanent/Life of Structure Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC 245(revised 5/ 2025)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator, available at

 $\underline{https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp\text{-}content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf} \ .$ 

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022

**REVISED:** 

11/26/2024

Administration 2200 R

# ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF ELECTRONIC RECORDS AND INFORMATION

#### I. INTRODUCTION

The Branford Board of Education (the "Board") complies with all state and federal laws and regulations regarding the retention, storage and disposition of records. These administrative regulations are designed to assist in implementation of the Board's policy regarding the retention, storage, and disposition of public records. These regulations shall be disseminated and/or made available to all school officials, employees, and individuals granted access to the computer systems and/or networks of the Branford Public Schools (the "District") and/or who send electronic messages as part of their work for the District. Collectively, all individuals granted access to the District's computer systems are referred to as the "Users."

These regulations supplement and do not replace District policy relating to education records.

#### II. DEFINITIONS

- A. Archival record means a public record, which, regardless of format, possesses enduring value if it documents or contains information on one or more of the following: 1) the evolution of the Board, the District, or their policies and practices; 2) claims or petitions against the Board or the District and the disposition of those claims or petitions; 3) obligations and claims made on citizens by the Board or the District and their disposition; 4) the legal and legislative history of the Board or the District; and/or 5) topics of research value beyond the specific administrative, legal or fiscal reasons the records were originally created.
- B. Computer systems mean the Board's computers, computer networks, electronic devices, Internet access and electronic messaging systems, which are provided in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for students and the business operations of the District.
- C. Digital imaging means the process of converting original records on paper or film into electronic images. The process typically requires a document scanner or digital camera, a computer and software to capture the image, and indexing of the digitized images.
- D. Digitized record means an electronic record created by converting paper or other media formats to a digital form that is of sufficient authenticity, reliability, usability, and integrity to serve in place of the original source record.

- E. Disposition means a final administrative action taken with regard to records, including destruction, transfer to another entity, or permanent preservation.
- F. Electronic messages mean e-mail, fax, instant messaging, text messaging, and Web-based messaging services. Electronic messages may be transmitted by a variety of mediums, including computers and mobile computing devices. In addition to the body of the message, electronic messages also contain metadata, such as transactional information (e.g., date and time sent, sender/receiver) and may contain attachments such as calendars, directories, distribution lists, sound recordings, photographs, images, word-processing documents, spreadsheets, and other electronic documents.
- G. Electronic messaging systems mean mobile, chat, and instant message; cloud collaboration platforms, including internal chat, peer-to-peer messaging systems, and draft email message transfer; and products that have the ability to create duration-based or subjective removal of content such as (Snapchat), and security focused platforms, such as (Signal).
- H. Electronically stored information means information that is fixed in a tangible form and is stored in a medium from which it can be retrieved and examined. It can consist of writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, sound recordings, images, and other data or data compilations stored in any medium from which information can be obtained into usable form.
- I. Historical record means a public record that has been determined to possess value in documenting the history of an organization and is thus worthy of permanent preservation.
- J. Official record copy means the specific copy of a public record, as provided in C.G.S. § 1-200(5), designated by the public agency as the legally recognized copy that must be maintained for records retention, preservation, and authentication.
- K. Non-records mean items that are not usually included within the scope of official records. Examples of non-records are extra (duplicate) copies kept only for convenience, reference materials, blank forms, and spam and unsolicited advertisements.
- L. Permanent records mean records that have been determined to have sufficient historical, administrative, legal, fiscal, or other value to warrant continuing preservation.
- M. Public records mean any recorded data or information relating to the conduct of the public's business prepared, owned, used, or received by a public agency, whether such data or information is handwritten, typed, tape-recorded, videotaped, printed, photostated, photographed or recorded by any method.

- N. Routine correspondence means any communication that is part of or relates to commonplace tasks or duties within an office and is done at regular or specified intervals.
- O. Source record/original source record means the record from which a digitized version or digitized record is created.
- P. Transitory correspondence consists of communication that does not relate to an individual's job responsibilities or has a short-term administrative value.

#### III. RECORDS CUSTODIAN

The Superintendent of Schools shall serve as the Records Custodian who will be responsible for the implementation of District policies and regulations for the retention of records, including electronic messages and electronically stored information. The Superintendent shall delegate responsibilities associated with the implementation of District policies and regulations to appropriate personnel.

#### RETENTION OF RECORDS

The District shall comply with the minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records Retention Schedules for public records, as issued by the Office of the Public Records Administrator for the State of Connecticut ("OPRA"). Retention requirements apply to the official record copy of a public record and are based on the content and function of the public record, not the media type.

If records are kept in both electronic and hard copy format, the District shall designate which record is the official record copy. The designated official record copy shall be the legally recognized copy maintained for records retention. When District officials or employees are unsure which copy serves as the official record copy, they should contact the Record Custodian for clarification.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by District officials and employees, all District officials and employees have a duty to preserve all records and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or may be anticipated to involve future litigation. Record preservation under such circumstances shall only be required after receipt of formal written notice of such requirement by the Superintendent or designee.

#### V. CLASSIFICATION OF ELECTRONIC MESSAGES

The same record retention policy that applies to paper records applies to electronically stored information, including electronic messages. Therefore, like paper records, the content and function of an electronic record, including electronic messages, determine the retention period for that document.

District officials and employees shall use the following steps in determining whether to maintain electronic messages and, if so, for how long:

- Step 1: Determine whether the message is a public record or a non-record.
- Step 2: If the message is a non-record, destroy at will (e.g., spam and unsolicited advertisements).
- Step 3: If the message is a record, determine which records series the message belongs to, for example:
  - 1. If the message is Transitory Correspondence, delete at will.
  - 2. If the message is Routine Correspondence, retain for 2 years.
  - 3. If the message is All Other Correspondence, retain for the equivalent records series.

Step 4: Maintain the messages for the required retention period under the equivalent records series.

## VI. DIGITAL IMAGING OF PAPER/HARD COPY RECORDS

Paper records may be digitized and maintained as electronic records; however, in doing so, the District must ensure the authenticity, reliability, integrity and usability of the reformatted records. If the District uses a vendor for digital imaging services, the District remains responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy.

In its use of digital imaging, the District shall:

- 1. Establish and maintain a quality assurance process designed to ensure the creation of accurate and authentic digital images and accurate indexes and production metadata.
- 2. Create and maintain accurate and authentic digital images in accordance with accepted standards and best practices.
- Create and maintain accurate indexes and production metadata designed to properly identify and retrieve digital images.
- 4. Store and protect digital images against file corruption, alteration, or deletion throughout the designated retention period.

- 5. Perform periodic backups of all digital images, associated indices, and production metadata and maintain a geographically remote offsite backup copy designed to enable recovery and access in the event of a wide-spread disaster or emergency.
- 6. Perform and certify annual tests of backup media designed to ensure all files have been backed up and are readable.
- 7. Migrate digital images, associated indexes, and production metadata to a newer media platform or file format as needed in a manner designed to ensure the content remains accessible.
- 8. Define and document the normal operations and use of the imaging technology and electronic content management system in a manner designed to ensure system trustworthiness.
- 1. Comply with Public Records Policy 04: Electronic Records Management, Public Records Standards 04-1: Electronic Records, and the digital imaging standards established by the OPRA in Public Records Standards 04-2: Digital Imaging.

#### VII. RETENTION OF ELECTRONIC RECORDS

Electronic messages and electronically stored information will be archived by the District for their required retention period using method(s) approved by the Records Custodian, which may include the following:

- 1. Print message or record and store in appropriate hard copy file.
- 2. Place in computer folders and save on virtual or hard drive.
- 3. Save to a removable disk which is then stored in an appropriate location.
- 4. Transfer to an automated records management software application.
- 5. Manage at the server by an automated classification system.

The Records Custodian will be responsible for working with the District Systems Administrator to implement a schedule and system for reviewing electronically stored information. This review shall occur at least annually. No <u>system-wide</u> process for automatic deletion of electronic information will be implemented without notice to any individual who may have such information and each such individual will verify that they have reviewed and archived information that must be retained. Following this review, all electronic messages and/or electronically stored information that have not been archived according to District policies and procedures shall be designated for deletion or archiving, and the affected Users will be notified about the procedures to be followed to implement this process. The Records Custodian or designee shall follow up with notified Users to promote compliance.

Additionally, the Records Custodian, working with the District Systems Administrator, shall establish a process designated to ensure that any process for automatic deletion of electronic information from the system will not delete information stored in folders and/or system locations that have been designated as appropriate for archiving electronically stored information.

#### VIII. DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC RECORDS

The disposition of public records shall only occur in accordance with relevant state and federal statutes and guidelines established by the OPRA. The District shall also follow the OPRA's specific protocols for the disposition of permanent, historical and archival records. If a record does not appear on a records retention schedule, the District shall contact the OPRA for further guidance before disposing of any such record.

The OPRA provides for two separate processes for (1) the disposition of official record copies and (2) the disposition of original source records, where such records have been appropriately digitized. If the District uses a vendor for disposition of records, the District remains responsible for ensuring compliance with these regulations.

## A. Disposition of Official Record Copies

If a record is the official record copy, the District may not dispose of such record until the applicable retention period has been met and the District has received signed authorization from the OPRA or State Archives. The District shall adhere to the following steps in determining whether to dispose of official record copies:

- **Step 1:** Ensure the proper records retention schedule has been met for the document(s) at issue. All records proposed for disposition must be on an approved records retention schedule. If a record is not on a schedule, the record cannot be disposed, and the OPRA must be contacted for further direction. For permanent, historical, and/or archival records, contact the State Archives for further instruction.
- **Step 2:** Submit the Records Disposition Authorization Form RC-075 ("RC-075 Form) to request authorization to dispose of the official record copy, in accordance with Public Records Policy 05: Disposition of Public Records (PRP 05) and at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed date of destruction.
- **Step 3:** Receive signed authorization indicating approval from the OPRA before disposing of any official record copy.
- **Step 4:** Follow the OPRA guidance regarding the method of disposal. If records are being destroyed, follow OPRA guidance based on the format of the record to be destroyed (e.g., whether hard copy or electronic media).

**Step 5:** Document that the original source records were destroyed lawfully. The District shall follow a destruction process by which content is systematically deleted with an audit trail that is legally admissible in court.

**Step 6:** Record the actual date of destruction on RC-075 Form and attach any supporting documentation.

**Step 7:** Retain the RC-075 Form and any supporting documentation for the retention period for Records Disposition Authorization records.

## B. Disposition of Original Source Records After Scanning

If paper public records have been converted to digitized records and/or if the District seeks to digitize and dispose of such records on an ongoing basis, the District shall retain and/or dispose of original source records pursuant to the following guidelines.

The District may not dispose of any original source record until the applicable retention period has been met and the District has received signed authorization from the OPRA or State Archives. The District shall adhere to the following steps in determining whether to dispose of original source records:

## **Less-than-Permanent Records:**

Step 1: For less-than-permanent records that have already been digitized, the Records Custodian must complete and submit the Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper Records Stored as Digital Images Form RC-040 ("RC-040 Form") to request approval for disposal of original non-permanent records that have been reformatted as digital images.

- a. The RC-040 Form must be signed by the Records Custodian and the Superintendent and completed in accordance with the instructions on the form.
- b. The District must receive signed authorization indicating approval from the State Archivist and the Public Records Administrator before disposing of original source records.

For less-than-permanent records that will be digitized and disposed on an ongoing basis, the Records Custodian must complete and submit the Annual Certification for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-045 ("RC-045 Form") to request pre-authorization to dispose of original non-permanent source records stored as digital images.

- a. The RC-045 Form must be signed by the Records Custodian and the Superintendent and completed in accordance with the instructions on the form.
- b. The District must receive signed authorization indicating approval from the State Archivist and the Public Records Administrator before disposing of non-permanent original source records on an ongoing basis. The RC-045 Form certifies that records will be digitized on an ongoing basis as part of standard business practices. This authorization only applies to the original non-permanent records within the series approved on the RC-045 Form.
- c. The Records Custodian, in consultation with the Superintendent, *must renew certification annually* by submitting a completed RC-045 Form. *Certification does not extend beyond the 12-month period*.
- Step 2: Once digitized, and upon approved destruction of the paper records, the Records Custodian must designate the digitized record as the official record copy. All digitized records will be properly maintained and will remain accessible for the full retention period.
- 1. **Step 3:** The District must document that the original source records were
- 2. destroyed lawfully and document the actual date of disposition on the respective form, the RC-040 Form or the RC-045 Form. The District shall follow a destruction process by which content is systematically deleted with an audit trail that is legally admissible in court.
  - **Step 4:** The District shall record the actual date of disposition on the RC-040 or RC-045 Form, as applicable, and retain such form and any supporting documentation for the retention period for Records Disposal Authorization records.

## Permanent, Historical, Archival, or Life of Structure Records:

Step 1: For permanent, historical, archival, or life of structure records, the Records Custodian must complete the Certification for Disposal of Original Permanent/Life of Structure Records Stored as Digital Images Form RC-245 ("RC-245 Form") in accordance with the instructions on the form. The RC-245 Form permits the District to request pre-authorization to dispose of original paper permanent, historical, archival or life of structure records stored as digital images. The Records Custodian must ensure that the digital records are accessible for the full retention period. The Records

Custodian and Superintendent of Schools must also certify that all other requirements set forth in the RC-245 Form are met.

- a. The District shall follow specific requirements for digitizing permanent, archival, historical or life structure records as outlined in the Public Records Policy 04: Electronic Records Management, Public Records Standards 04-1: Electronic Records, and Public Records Standards 04-2: Digital Imaging.
- b. The District must evaluate, update, and resubmit this certification for approval every 5 years **or** under the following conditions, whichever comes first:
  - To reflect changes in information systems, scanning procedures, storage methods, or any other systems or workflows that could affect the quality, accessibility, or preservation of digital images produced under this certification;
  - ii. Upon updates to retention periods or public records and digital preservation guidance;
  - iii. When seeking approval for scanning and disposing of additional permanent record series, date groups, or sets other than those previously approved; or
  - iv. When decommissioning a legacy system used to create or store any digitized permanent records.
- c. The District must notify the State Archives prior to destroying permanent paper records and receive signed authorization indicating approval from the State Archivist and the Public Records Administrator before disposing of an original source record. Records may not be disposed until the District has received this signed authorization.
- d. Upon approval of the RC-245 Form, the State Archivist may request transfer of paper records or a scheduled transfer of the digitized records to the State Archives.
- Step 2: Once digitized, and upon approved disposition or destruction of the paper records, the Records Custodian must designate the digitized record as the official record copy. All digitized records will be

properly maintained and will remain accessible for the full retention period.

Step 3: The District must document that the original source records were disposed of lawfully and document the actual date of disposition on the RC-245 Form.

Step 4: Following disposal of the original source records, the Records Custodian must forward the signed original Form (and any supporting documentation) to the Office of the Town Clerk for retention and may keep a duplicate copy.

Step 5: The District shall retain duplicates of the RC 245 Form and any supporting documentation for the retention period for Records Disposal Authorization records.

## Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-200(5); 1-211; 1-213(b)(3)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 7-109

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 11-8 et seq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Office of the Public Records Administrator

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04, Electronic Records Management (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-1, Electronic Records (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-2, Digital Imaging (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 05, Disposition of Public Records of the Public Records (Nov. 2011)

OPRA, Public Records Memorandum 101: Disposition of Original Paper Records After Scanning (June 2024)

OPRA, Records Management Terms (July 2015)

Connecticut State Library, State Archives ("State Archives"), State Archives Policy 01: Transfer of Historical Records to the State Archives of Other Approved Archival Repository (October 15, 2019)

Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

OPRA, Records Disposition Authorization, Form RC-075 (revised 12/2021)

OPRA, Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC -040 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Annual Certification for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-045 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Certification for Disposition of Original Permanent/Life of Structure Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC -245 (revised5 / 2024)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator, available at

https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf.

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022

REVISED: 11/26/2024



## **Community/Board Operation**

1800P

## **USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES**

In accordance with Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239, the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") may permit the use of any school facility for nonprofit educational or community purposes whether or not school is in session. The Board may also grant the temporary use of any school facility for public, educational or other purposes, including the holding of political discussion, at such time the facility is not in use for school purposes. In addition, the Board shall grant such use for any purpose of voting under the provisions of Title 9 of the Connecticut General Statutes whether or not school is in session. In accordance with 20 U.S.C. § 7905, the Board shall not deny equal access to or a fair opportunity to meet, or otherwise discriminate, against any group officially affiliated with the Boy Scouts of America (or any other youth group listed as a patriotic society in Title 36 of the United States Code) that wishes to conduct a meeting using school facilities pursuant to this policy. Such uses shall be governed by the following rules and procedures, and shall be subject to such restrictions as the Superintendent or his/her designee considers expedient.

Consistent with this policy, the Superintendent shall develop and promulgate Administrative Regulations and associated forms governing use of school buildings and facilities by community and other groups. Since the primary purpose of school facilities is for educational activities, such activities will have priority over all other requested uses.

## A. Application Procedures

Applications for use of facilities shall be submitted in accordance with the Administrative Regulations.

Groups requesting use of school buildings and facilities must identify the specific facilities desired, and approval will be for those specific facilities only. All school equipment on the premises shall remain in the charge and control of the building principal or responsible administrator, and shall not be used without the express written permission of the administrator.

Approval of school facilities by the principal or other responsible party may be revoked at any time by the Superintendent or -his/her-designee.

#### B. Eligible Organizations and Priority of Use

Requests for use of school district facilities will be made according to the following guidelines regarding priority of usage of such facilities:

## Order of priority:

- 1. School-sponsored programs and activities.
- 2. Activities of school-related organizations (*e.g.*, PTA, Booster Clubs, After Graduation Committees and similar organizations).
- Town department or agency activities and nonprofit youth organizations operating within the town. , including Branford Youth Programs.
- 4. Activities of nonprofit and volunteer organizations operating within the Town, other than those described in the categories above. school-related organizations covered by category #2 above.
- 5. Activities of for-profit organizations operating within the Town.
- 6. Out-of-town organizations and large events.

## C. Restrictions on Use of School Facilities

The following restrictions shall apply to the use of school facilities:

- 1. Illegal activities will not be tolerated.
- 2. Use or possession of tobacco, vapor products, marijuana, alcoholic beverages, or unauthorized controlled substances shall not be permitted on school property.
- 3. Refreshments may not be prepared, served or consumed without the prior approval of the responsible administrator. Notwithstanding, only those beverages permitted by state law may be sold during the school day. The responsible administrator may permit other beverages to be sold at the location of events occurring after the end of the regular school day or on the weekend as long as they are not sold from a vending machine or at a school store. Upon approval by the administrator, refreshments may be prepared, served and consumed only in areas designated by the responsible administrator. All groups will be required to pay for food service personnel if using school kitchen equipment and spaces.
- 4. Obscene advertising, decorations or materials shall not be permitted on school property.

- 5. Advertising, decorations, or other materials that promote the use of illegal drugs, tobacco products, vapor products, or alcoholic beverages shall not be permitted.
- 6. Activities that are disruptive of the school environment are not permitted.
- 7. Subletting rented time to other organizations shall not be permitted.

Any violation of this Policy or any applicable Administrative Regulations may result in permanent revocation of the privilege to use school facilities against the organization and/or individuals involved.

#### D. Fees and Other Costs

Users of school facilities shall be responsible for the fees and costs set out in a fee schedule established by the Superintendent. The following guidelines shall be incorporated into such fee schedule:

Category

1. School-sponsored programs and activities. No fee or associated costs\*.

2. Activities of school-related organizations (e.g., PTO, Booster Clubs, After Graduation Committees and similar organizations).

No fee or associated costs\*.

3. Town department or agency activities and nonprofit youth organizations operating within the town. and Branford Youth Programs.

No fee or associated costs\*. (In the event that a program imposes an admission fee, a gate or entrance fee may be levied by the District.)

- 4. Activities of nonprofit and volunteer organizations operating within the Town, other than those described in the categories above. other than school-related organizations and those covered by category #3 above.
- No fee or associated costs\*A feeper registrant will be applied. Additional Aassociated costs will be applied when facilities are used outside of normal operating hours.
- 5. Activities of for-profit organizations operating within the Town.

Rental fee and associated costs

6. Out-of-town organizations.

Rental fee and associated costs

7. Large Events

Fees will be evaluated based on the needs of the event regardless of categorization above.

\*See Large events in definitions

Use of the facility outside of building hours of any category above requires prior approval from the Director of Facilities or designee and is contingent upon available staffing and budget.

#### **Definitions**

"Branford Youth Programs" shall mean any program that is primarily instructed or eoached by volunteers, is managed by volunteers, and where at least 90% of the organization's participants are Branford Residents.¶

Ŧ

"A fee per registrant" shall be a nominal amount paid per participant enrolled in the activity or event. These fees are intended to partially offset associated costs (described below).

¶.

"Associated costs" shall include, but shall not be limited to, fees for the services of any custodial personnel, food service personnel, security personnel, technology, or other personnel deemed by the responsible administrator to be necessary in connection with the use of a school district facility. Such costs shall be at the rates set forth in the fee schedule. Rental fees and/or associated costs otherwise applicable may be waived by the Board of Education Superintendent or his/her designee if such waiver is deemed by the Board of Education Superintendent or his/her designee to be in the best interest of the school system and/or the Town.

"Rental fees" are in addition to the associated costs and are intended to partially offset wear and tear and equipment repair/replacement costs.

"Large events" are events where more than 400 attendees are expected. These events do not include regularly scheduled meetings, BPS practices, approved school performances, or BPS games sponsored by Branford Youth Programs. However, \*Ffundraisers or other large activities sponsored by any category Branford Youth Programs willwill incur large event fees if more than 400 attendees are expected unless they receive a fee waiver from the Board.

## E. Responsibility for Damage to Property or Loss of Property

In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting such use must agree to assume responsibility for any damage to and/or theft or loss of any school district property arising out of the use of the facilities. Organizations in

categories 4-7 shall provide a Certificate of Insurance with the Town of Branford's minimum insurance requirements and the Branford Board of Education named as additional insured.

## F. Health and Safety Protocols

In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting such use must agree to abide by all health and safety protocols in place by the school district at the time of use, including but not limited to protocols relating to cleaning of the facilities, signage, and health screenings of individuals requesting access to the facilities. Organizations and individuals are responsible for securing necessary permits required by state and town law and health and safety code.

## **Legal References:**

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239 Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-215f Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221q Conn. Gen. Stat. Title 9

Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7905 Patriotic and National Organizations, 36 U.S.C. § 1010 et seq.

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022 REVISED: <del>3-20-2024</del>



Personnel 4300 P

## EMPLOYMENT AND STUDENT TEACHER CHECKS

As set forth below, each applicant for a position with the Branford Public Schools (the "District"), and each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience in the District (collectively referred to as "applicants"), shall be asked to provide in writing: (1) whether the applicant has ever been convicted of a crime; (2) whether there are any criminal charges pending against the applicant at the time of the application and, if charges are pending, to state the charges and the court in which such charges are pending; and (3) whether the applicant is included on the Abuse and Neglect Registry of the Connecticut Department of Children and Families ("DCF") (the "Registry"). If the applicant's current or most recent employment occurred out of state, the applicant will also be asked whether the applicant is included on an equivalent database and/or abuse/neglect registry maintained in that other state.

Applicants shall not be required to disclose any arrest, criminal charge or conviction that has been erased. An employment application form that contains any question concerning the criminal history of the applicant shall contain the following notice, in clear and conspicuous language:

Pursuant to section 31-51i(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, the applicant is hereby notified that (1) the applicant is not required to disclose the existence of any erased criminal history record information, (2) erased criminal history record information are records pertaining to a finding of delinquency or that a child was a member of a family with service needs, an adjudication as a youthful offender, a criminal charge that has been dismissed or nolled, a criminal charge for which the person has been found not guilty or a conviction for which the person received an absolute pardon or criminal records that are erased pursuant to statute or by other operation of law, and (3) any person with erased criminal history record information shall be deemed to have never been arrested within the meaning of the general statutes with respect to the proceedings so erased and may so swear under oath.

In addition, the District shall conduct an employment history check for each applicant for a position, as set forth below.

For the purposes of this policy:

"Sexual misconduct" means any verbal, nonverbal, written, or electronic communication, or any other act directed toward or with a student that is designed to establish a sexual relationship with the student, including a sexual invitation, dating or soliciting a date, engaging in sexual dialog, making sexually suggestive comments, self-disclosure or physical exposure of a sexual or erotic nature, and any other sexual, indecent, or erotic contact with a student.

"Abuse or neglect" means abuse or neglect as described in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46b-120, and includes any violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-70 (sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-70a (aggravated sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-71 (sexual assault in the second degree), 53a-72a (sexual assault in the third degree), 53a-72b (sexual assault in the third degree with a firearm), or 53a-73a (sexual assault in the fourth degree).

"Former employer" means any person, firm, business, educational institution, nonprofit agency, corporation, limited liability company, the state, any political subdivision of the state, any governmental agency, or any other entity that such applicant was employed by during any of the previous twenty years prior to applying for a position with a local or regional board of education.

## I. Employment History Check Procedures

A. The District shall not offer employment to an applicant for a position, including any position that is contracted for, if such applicant would have direct student contact, prior to the District:

## 1. Requiring the applicant:

- a. to list the name, address, and telephone number of each current employer or former employer (please note the definition of "former employer" above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) during any of the previous twenty years, if:
  - (i) such current or former employer is/was a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, and/or
  - (ii) the applicant's employment with such current or former employer caused the applicant to have contact with children.

### b. to submit a written authorization that

(i) consents to and authorizes disclosure by the employers listed under paragraph I.A.1.a of this policy of the

- information requested under paragraph I.A.2 of this policy and the release of related records by such employers,
- (ii) consents to and authorizes disclosure by the Connecticut State Department of Education (the "Department") of the information requested under paragraph I.A.3 of this policy and the release of related records by the Department, and
- (iii) releases those employers and the Department from liability that may arise from such disclosure or release of records pursuant to paragraphs I.A.2 or I.A.3 of this policy; and
- c. to submit a written statement of whether the applicant
  - (i) has been the subject of an abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct investigation by any employer, state agency or municipal police department, unless the investigation resulted in a finding that all allegations were unsubstantiated,
  - (ii) has ever been disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect was pending or under investigation by DCF, or an allegation of sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation or due to an allegation substantiated pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of abuse or neglect, or of sexual misconduct or a conviction for abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, or
  - (iii) has ever had a professional or occupational license or certificate suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered such a license or certificate while an allegation of abuse or neglect was pending or under investigation by DCF or an investigation of sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to an allegation substantiated by DCF of abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct or a conviction for abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct;
- 2. Conducting a review of the employment history of the applicant by contacting those employers listed by the applicant under paragraph I.A.1.a of this policy. Such review shall be conducted using a form developed by the Department, which shall request the following:
  - a. the dates employment of the applicant, and

- b. a statement as to whether the employer has knowledge that the applicant:
  - (i) was the subject of an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct for which there is an investigation pending with any employer, state agency, or municipal police department or which has been substantiated, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF;
  - (ii) was disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF; or
  - (iii) has ever had a professional or occupational license, certificate, authorization or permit suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered such a license, certificate, authorization or permit while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF. Such review may be conducted telephonically or through written communication. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, not later than five (5) business days after the District receives a request for such information about an employee or former employee, the District shall respond with such information. The District may request more information concerning any response made by a current or former employer for information about an applicant, and, notwithstanding subsection (g), such employer shall respond not later than five (5) business days after receiving such request.
- 3. Requesting information from the Department concerning:
  - a. the eligibility status for employment of any applicant for a position requiring a certificate, authorization or permit,

- b. whether the Department has knowledge that a finding has been substantiated by DCF pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct against the applicant and any information concerning such a finding, and
- c. whether the Department has received notification that the applicant has been convicted of a crime or of criminal charges pending against the applicant and any information concerning such charges.
- B. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, if the District receives information that an applicant for a position with or an employee of the District has been disciplined for a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, it shall notify the Department of such information.
- C. The District shall not employ an applicant for a position involving direct student contact who does not comply with the provisions of paragraph I.A.1 of this policy.
- D. The District may employ or contract with an applicant on a temporary basis for a period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days, pending the District's review of information received under this section, provided:
  - 1. The applicant complied with paragraph I.A.1 of this policy;
  - 2. The District has no knowledge of information pertaining to the applicant that would disqualify the applicant from employment with the District; and
  - 3. The applicant affirms that the applicant is not disqualified from employment with the District.
- E. The District shall not enter into a collective bargaining agreement, an employment contract, an agreement for resignation or termination, a severance agreement, or any other contract or agreement or take any action that:
  - Has the effect of suppressing information relating to an investigation of a report of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct by a current or former employee;
  - 2. Affects the ability of the District to report suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct to appropriate authorities; or
  - 3. Requires the District to expunge information about an allegation or a finding of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct from any

documents maintained by the District, unless, after investigation, such allegation is dismissed or found to be false.

- F. The District shall not offer employment to a person as a substitute teacher, unless such person and the District comply with the provisions of paragraph I.A.1 of this policy. The District shall determine which such persons are employable as substitute teachers and maintain a list of such persons. The District shall not hire any person as a substitute teacher who is not on such list. Such person shall remain on such list as long as such person is continuously employed by the District as a substitute teacher, as described in paragraph III.B.2 of this policy, provided the District does not have any knowledge of a reason that such person should be removed from such list.
- G. In the case of an applicant who is a contractor, the contractor shall require any employee with such contractor who would be in a position involving direct student contact to supply to such contractor all the information required of an applicant under paragraphs I.A.1.a and I.A.1.c of this policy and a written authorization under paragraph I.A.1.b of this policy. Such contractor shall contact any current or former employer (please note the definition of "former employer" above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) of such employee that was a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or if the employee's employment with such current or former employer caused the employee to have contact with children, and request, either telephonically or through written communication, any information concerning whether there was a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct against such employee. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, such employer shall report to the contractor any such finding, either telephonically or through written communication. If the contractor receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise has knowledge of such a finding, the contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, immediately forward such information to the District, either telephonically or through written communication. If the District receives such information, it shall determine whether such employee may work in a position involving direct student contact at any school in the District. No determination by the District that any such employee of the contractor shall not work under any such contract in any such position shall constitute a breach of such contract.
- H. Any applicant/employee who knowingly provides false information or knowingly fails to disclose information required in subdivision (1) of subsection (A) of this section shall be subject to discipline by the District that may include:
  - 1. denial of employment, or

- 2. termination of the contract of a certified employee, in accordance with the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151, or
- 3. termination of a non-certified employee in accordance with applicable law and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreement, contract or District policy.
- I. If the District provides information in accordance with paragraph I.A.2 or I.G of this policy, the District shall be immune from criminal and civil liability, provided the District did not knowingly supply false information.
- J. Notwithstanding the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151c and subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, the District shall provide, upon request by another local or regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic school for the purposes of an inquiry pursuant to paragraphs I.A.2 or I.G of this policy or to the Commissioner of Education pursuant to paragraph I.B of this policy any information that the District has concerning a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct by a subject of any such inquiry.
- K. Prior to offering employment to an applicant, the District shall make a documented good faith effort to contact each current and any former employer (please note the definition of "former employer" employer above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) of the applicant that was a local or regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or if the applicant's employment with such current or former employer caused the applicant to have contact with children in order to obtain information and recommendations that may be relevant to the applicant's fitness for employment. Such effort, however, shall not be construed to require more than three telephonic requests made on three separate days.
- L. The District shall not offer employment to any applicant who had any previous employment contract terminated by a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or who resigned from such employment, if the person has been convicted of a violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101a, when an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual assault has been substantiated.

## II. DCF Registry Checks

Prior to hiring any person for a position with the District, and before a student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program in the District, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the

District, begins such student teaching experience, the district shall require such applicant or student to submit to a records check of information maintained on the Registry concerning the applicant.

For any applicant whose current or most recent employment occurred out of state, the District shall request that the applicant provide the District with authorization to access information maintained concerning the applicant by the equivalent state agency in the state of most recent employment, if such state maintains information about abuse and neglect and has a procedure by which such information can be obtained. Refusal to permit the District to access such information shall be considered grounds for rejecting any applicant for employment.

The District shall request information from the Registry, or its out of state equivalent, promptly and in any case no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of employment. Registry checks will be processed according to the following procedure:

- A. No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to offer employment to the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will either obtain the information from the Registry or, if the applicant's consent is required to access the information, will supply the applicant with the release form utilized by DCF, or its out of state equivalent when available, for obtaining information from the Registry.
- B. If consent is required to access the Registry, no later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has provided the successful job applicant with the form, the applicant must submit the signed form to DCF, or its out of state equivalent, with a copy to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee. Failure of the applicant to submit the signed form to DCF or its out of state equivalent within such ten-day period, without good cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of employment.
- C. Upon receipt of Registry or out-of-state registry information indicating previously undisclosed information concerning abuse or neglect investigations concerning the successful job applicant/employee, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the results of the Registry check and will provide an opportunity for the affected applicant/employee to respond to the results of the Registry check.
- D. If notification is received by the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee that that the applicant is listed as a perpetrator of abuse or neglect on the Registry, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee shall provide the applicant with an opportunity to be heard regarding the results of the Registry check. If warranted by the results of the Registry check and any additional information provided by the applicant, the Superintendent or the

Superintendent's designee shall revoke the offer of employment and/or terminate the applicant's employment if the applicant has already commenced working for the District.

## III. Criminal Records Check Procedure

- A. Each person hired by the District shall be required to submit to state and national criminal records checks within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of employment. Each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, shall be required to submit to state and national criminal records checks within sixty (60) calendar days from the date such student begins to perform such student teaching experience. Record checks will be processed according to the following procedure:\*
  - 1. No later than five (5) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to hire the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will provide the applicant with a packet containing all documents and materials necessary for the applicant to be fingerprinted by the Connecticut State Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection. This packet shall also contain all documents and materials necessary for the police department to submit the completed fingerprints to the State Police Bureau of Identification for the processing of state and national criminal records checks. The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will also provide each applicant with the following notifications before the applicant obtains the applicant's fingerprints: (1) Agency Privacy Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants; (2) Noncriminal Justice Applicant's Privacy Rights; (3) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation, United States Department of Justice Privacy Act Statement.
  - 2. No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has provided the successful job applicant with the fingerprinting packet, the applicant must arrange to be fingerprinted by the Connecticut State Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection. Failure of the applicant to have the applicant's fingerprints taken within such ten-day period, without good cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of employment.
  - 3. Any person for whom criminal records checks are required to be performed pursuant to this policy must pay all fees and costs associated with the fingerprinting process and/or the submission or processing of the requests for criminal records checks. Fees and costs associated with

the fingerprinting process and the submission and process of requests are waived for student teachers, in accordance with state law.

- 4. Upon receipt of a criminal records check indicating a previously undisclosed conviction, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the results of the record check and will provide an opportunity for the affected applicant/employee to respond to the results of the criminal records check. The affected applicant/employee may notify the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee in writing within five (5) calendar days that the affected applicant/employee will challenge such individual's criminal history records check. Upon written notification to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee of such a challenge, the affected applicant/employee shall have ten (10) calendar days to provide the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee with necessary documentation regarding the affected applicant/employee's record challenge. The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee may grant an extension to the preceding ten-day period during which the affected applicant/employee may provide such documentation for good cause shown.
- 5. Decisions regarding the effect of a conviction upon an applicant/employee, whether disclosed or undisclosed by the applicant/employee, will be made on a case-by-case basis.

  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the falsification or omission of any information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not limited to information concerning criminal convictions or pending criminal charges, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration for employment or discharge from employment.
- 6. Notwithstanding anything in paragraph III.A.5 of this policy, above, no decision to deny employment or withdraw an offer of employment on the basis of an applicant/employee's criminal history record shall be made without affording the applicant/employee the opportunities set forth in paragraph III.A.4 of this policy, above.

## B. Criminal Records Check for Substitute Teachers:

A substitute teacher who is hired by the District must submit to state and national criminal history records checks according to the procedures outlined above, subject to the following:

1. If the state and national criminal history records checks for a substitute teacher have been completed within <u>one year prior to the date</u> the District hired the substitute teacher, and if the substitute teacher arranged for such prior criminal history records checks to be forwarded to the

Superintendent the Superintendent's designee, then the substitute teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records check at the time of such hire.

2. If a substitute teacher submitted to state and national criminal history records checks upon being hired by the District, then the substitute teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records check so long as the substitute teacher is continuously employed by the District, that is, employed for at least one day of each school year, by the District, provided a substitute teacher is subjected to such checks at least once every five years.

## IV. Sex Offender Registry Checks

District personnel shall cross-reference the Connecticut Department of Public Safety's sexual offender registry prior to hiring any new employee and before a student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, begins such student teaching experience. Registration as a sexual offender constitutes grounds for denial of employment opportunities and opportunities to perform student teaching experiences in the istrict.

## V. Credit Checks

The District may also ask a prospective employee for a credit report for employment for certain District positions, where the District's receipt of a credit report is substantially related to the employee's potential job. "Substantially related to the current or potential job" is defined to mean "the information contained in the credit report is related to the position for which the employee or prospective employee who is the subject of the report is being evaluated because of the position." Prior to asking for a credit report, the District will determine whether the position falls within one of the categories as described in this paragraph. The position must: (1) be a managerial position which involves setting the direction or control of the District; (2) involve access to employees' personal or financial information; (3) involve a fiduciary responsibility to the District, including, but not limited to, the authority to issue payments, collect debts, transfer money or enter into contracts; (4) provide an expense account or District debit or credit card; or (5) involve access to the District's nonfinancial assets valued at two thousand five dollars or more.

When a credit report will be requested as part of the employment process, the District will provide written notification to the prospective employee regarding the use of credit checks. That notification must be provided in a document separate from the employment application. The notification must state that the District may use the information in the consumer credit report to make decisions related to the individual's employment.

The District will obtain written, signed consent before performing the credit or other background checks. If the District intends to take an action adverse to a potential employee based on the results of a credit report, the District must provide the prospective employee with a copy of the report on which the District relied in making the adverse decision, as well as a copy of "A Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act," which should be provided by the company that provides the results of the credit check. The District gives the potential employee a reasonable amount of time, i.e., at least five days, to dispute any of the information in the report prior to making any final employment decision.

If an adverse action is taken based on information from the report, the District will notify the prospective employee either orally, in writing or via electronic means that the adverse action was taken based on the information in the consumer report. That notice must include the name, address and phone number of the consumer reporting company that supplied the credit report; a statement that the company that supplied the report did not make the decision to take the unfavorable action and cannot provide specific reasons for the district's actions; and a notice of the person's right to dispute the accuracy or completeness of any information the consumer reporting company furnished, and to get an additional free report from the company if the person asks for it within sixty (60) calendar days.

## VI. Notice of Conviction

If, at any time, the District receives notice of a conviction of a crime by a person holding a certificate, authorization or permit issued by the State Board of Education, the District shall send such notice to the State Board of Education. In complying with this requirement, the District shall not disseminate the results of any national criminal history records check.

## VII. School Nurses

School nurses or nurse practitioners appointed by, or under contract with, the District shall also be required to submit to a criminal history records check in accordance with the procedures outlined above.

## VIII. Personal Online Accounts

For purposes of this policy, "personal online account" means any online account that is used by an employee or applicant exclusively for personal purposes and unrelated to any business purpose of the District, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, social media and retail-based Internet web sites. "Personal online account" does not include any account created, maintained, used or accessed by an employee or applicant for a business purpose of the District.

#### A. During the course of an employment check, the District may not:

- 1. request or require that an applicant provide the District with a username and password, password or any other authentication means for accessing a personal online account;
- 2. request or require that an applicant authenticate or access a personal online account in the presence of District personnel; or
- 3. require that an applicant invite a supervisor employed by the District or accept an invitation from a supervisor employed by the District to join a group affiliated with any personal online account of the applicant.
- B. The District may request or require that an applicant provide the District with a username and password, password or any other authentication means for accessing:
  - 1. any account or service provided by District or by virtue of the applicant's employment relationship with the District or that the applicant uses for the District's business purposes, or
  - 2. any electronic communications device supplied or paid for, in whole or in part, by the District.
- C. In accordance with applicable law, the District maintains the right to require an applicant to allow the District to access the applicant's personal online account, without disclosing the username and password, password or other authentication means for accessing such personal online account, for the purpose of:
  - conducting an investigation for the purpose of ensuring compliance with applicable state or federal laws, regulatory requirements or prohibitions against work-related employee misconduct based on the receipt of specific information about activity on an applicant's personal online account; or
  - 2. conducting an investigation based on the receipt of specific information about an applicant's unauthorized transfer of the District's proprietary information, confidential information or financial data to or from a personal online account operated by an applicant or other source.

## IX. Policy Inapplicable to Certain Individuals

This policy shall not apply to:

- A. A student employed by the District who attends a District school.
- B. A person employed by the District as a teacher for a noncredit adult class or adult education activity, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-67, who is not

required to hold a teaching certificate pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-145b for such position.

## X. Falsification of Records

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this policy, the falsification or omission of any information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not limited to information concerning abuse or neglect investigations or pending criminal applications, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration for employment or discharge from employment.

Legal References: Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-212

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221d

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222c

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51tt

Public Act 24-41, "An Act Concerning Educator Certification, Teachers, Paraeducators and Mandated Reporter Requirements."

Elementary and Secondary Education Act, reauthorized as the Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95, codified at 20 U.S.C.§ 1001 *et seq.* 

Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.

ADOPTED: 10-19-2022

REVISED: 8/11/2024

## **Agency Privacy Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants**

Authorized governmental and non-governmental agencies/officials that conduct a national fingerprint-based criminal history record check on an applicant for a noncriminal justice purpose (such as employment or a license, immigration or naturalization matter, security clearance, or adoption) are obligated to ensure the applicant is provided certain notices and that the results of the check are handled in a manner that protects the applicant's privacy. All notices must be provided in writing.<sup>1</sup> These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, United States Code (U.S.C.), Section 552a, and Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 50.12, among other authorities.

- Officials must ensure that each applicant receives an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement (dated 2013 or later) when the applicant submits the applicant's fingerprints and associated personal information.<sup>2</sup>
- Officials must advise all applicants in writing that procedures for obtaining a change, correction, or update of an FBI criminal history record are set forth at 28 CFR 16.34. Information regarding this process may be found at https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks and https://www.edo.cjis.gov.
- Officials must provide the applicant the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information in the FBI criminal history record.
- Officials should not deny the employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the FBI criminal history record until the applicant has been afforded a reasonable time to correct or complete the record or has declined to do so.
- Officials must use the criminal history record for authorized purposes only and cannot retain or disseminate it in violation of federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Council.<sup>3</sup>

The FBI has no objection to officials providing a copy of the applicant's FBI criminal history record to the applicant for review and possible challenge when the record was obtained based on positive fingerprint identification. If agency policy permits, this courtesy will save the applicant the time and additional FBI fee to obtain the applicant's record directly from the FBI by following the procedures found at 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34. It will also allow the officials to make a more timely determination of the applicant's suitability.

Each agency should establish and document the process/procedures it utilizes for how/when it gives the applicant the FBI Privacy Act Statement, the 28 CFR 50.12 notice, and the opportunity to correct the applicant's record. Such documentation will assist State and/or FBI auditors during periodic compliance reviews on use of FBI criminal history records for noncriminal justice purposes.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c); 28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d), 50.12(b) and 906.2(d).

If you need additional information or assistance, contact:

Connecticut Records:
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection
State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI)
1111 Country Club Road
Middletown, CT 06457
860-685-8480

Out-of-State Records:
Agency of Record
OR
FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request
1000 Custer Hollow Road
Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306

## **Noncriminal Justice Applicant's Privacy Rights**

As an applicant who is the subject of a national fingerprint-based criminal history record check for a noncriminal justice purpose (such as an application for a job or license, an immigration or naturalization matter, security clearance, or adoption), you have certain rights which are discussed below. All notices must be provided to you in writing.<sup>4</sup> These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, United States Code (U.S.C.) Section 552a, and Title 28 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), 50.12, among other authorities.

- You must be provided an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement (dated 2013 or later) when you submit your fingerprints and associated person information. This Privacy Act Statement must explain the authority for collecting your fingerprints and associated information and whether your fingerprints and associated information will be searched, shared, or retained.<sup>5</sup>
- You must be advised in writing of the procedures for obtaining a change, correction, or updating of your criminal history record as set forth at 28 CFR 16.34.
- You must be provided the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information in your FBI criminal history record (if you have such a record).
- If you have a criminal history record, you should be afforded a reasonable amount of time to correct or complete the record (or decline to do so) before the officials deny you the employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the FBI criminal history record.
- If agency policy permits, the officials may provide you with a copy of your FBI criminal history record for review and possible challenge. If agency policy does not permit it to provide you a copy of the record, you may obtain a copy of the record by submitting fingerprints and a fee to the FBI. Information regarding this process may be obtained at http://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks and https://www.edo.cjis.gov.
- If you decide to challenge the accuracy or completeness of your FBI criminal history record, you should send your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information to the FBI. Alternatively, you may send your challenge directly to the FBI by submitting a request via https://www.edo.cjis.gov. The FBI will then forward your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information and request the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement

- agency to verify or correct the challenged entry. Upon receipt of an official communication from that agency, the FBI will make any necessary changes/corrections to your record in accordance with the information supplied by that agency. (See 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34.)
- You have the right to expect that officials receiving the results of the criminal history record check will use it only for authorized purposes and will not retain or disseminate it in violation of federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact Council.<sup>6</sup>
- If you need additional information or assistance, please contact:

Connecticut Records:	Out-of-State Records:
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection	Agency of Record
State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI)	OR
1111 Country Club Road	FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request
Middletown, CT 06457	1000 Custer Hollow Road
860-685-8480	Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c); 28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d), and 906.2(d).

## Federal Bureau of Investigation Privacy Act Statement

## This privacy act statement is located on the back of the FD-258 fingerprint card.

**Authority:** The FBI's acquisition, preservation, and exchange of fingerprints and associated information is generally authorized under 28 U.S.C. 534. Depending on the nature of your application, supplemental authorities include Federal statutes, State statutes pursuant to Pub. L. 92-544, Presidential Executive Orders, and federal regulations. Providing your fingerprints and associated information is voluntary; however, failure to do so may affect completion or approval of your application.

Principal Purpose: Certain determinations, such as employment, licensing, and security clearances, may be predicated on fingerprint-based background checks. Your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics may be provided to the employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency, and/or the FBI for the purpose of comparing your fingerprints to other fingerprints in the FBI's Next Generation Identification (NGI) system or its successor systems (including civil, criminal, and latent fingerprint repositories) or other available records of the employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency. The FBI may retain your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics in NGI after the completion of this application and, while retained, your fingerprints may continue to be compared against other fingerprints submitted to or retained by NGI.

Routine Uses: During the processing of this application and for as long thereafter as your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics are retained in NGI, your information may be disclosed pursuant to your consent, and may be disclosed without your consent as permitted by the Privacy Act of 1974 and all applicable Routine Uses as may be published at any time in the Federal Register, including the Routine Uses for the NGI system and the FBI's Blanket Routine Uses. Routine uses include, but are not limited to, disclosures to: employing, governmental or authorized non-governmental agencies responsible for employment, contracting licensing, security clearances, and other suitability determinations; local, state, tribal, or federal law enforcement agencies; criminal justice agencies; and agencies responsible for national security or public safety.

As of 3/30/2018



Personnel 4475 P

#### INCREASING EDUCATOR DIVERSITY PLAN

In accordance with Sections 10-4a(3), 10-220(a), and 10-156ee of the Connecticut General Statutes, the Branford Board of Education (the "Board") has developed the following written plan for increasing educator diversity:

- 1. All recruiting sources will be informed in writing of the Board's non-discrimination policy.
- 2. Each Board employee involved in hiring educators for the Branford Rublic Schools (the "District") shall successfully complete the video training module relating to implicit bias and anti-bias in the hiring process, developed pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 10-156ee, prior to such employee's participation in the educator hiring process for the District.
- 3. The Board will develop contacts with local training and educational institutions, including those with highly diverse enrollments, to publicize job openings within the District and to solicit referrals of diverse and qualified candidates.
- 4. The Board will develop contacts with local community organizations, including diverse community organizations, to publicize job openings within the District and to solicit referrals of diverse and qualified candidates.
- 5. The Board will maintain, or expand, as appropriate, its help-wanted advertising to include print and/or broadcast media that is targeted to diverse individuals.
- 6. The Board will participate in local job fairs, including those that are sponsored by diverse community organizations or otherwise targeted toward diverse individuals
- 7. The Board, or its designee, will maintain records documenting all actions taken pursuant to this plan, including correspondence with recruitment agencies and other referral sources, job fair brochures and advertising copy.
- 8. The Board will review on an annual basis the effectiveness of this plan in increasing minority applicant flow and attracting qualified candidates for employment.

## Legal References:

Connecticut General Statutes §10-4a (3) Educational interests of state identified Connecticut General Statutes §10-220(a) Duties of boards of education Connecticut General Statutes §10-156ee Duties re minority teacher recruitment

Connecticut General Statutes §10-156hh Completion of video training module re implicit bias and anti-bias in hiring process for certain school district

NSCONTINUED FIRST READING APRIL 20'

## PROJECT GRADUATION

# "Red & White . . . up all night" A Substance Free Celebration

Branford High School
185 East Main Street • Branford, Connecticut 06405

Dear Branford Board of Education:

March 28, 2025

Branford High School will be honoring the Class of 2025 with our annual **PROJECT GRADUATION CELEBRATION**. We are once again moving our event offsite to the Sports Center of Connecticut in Shelton. Last year's event was well received by students, participation increased, and it was significantly easier to manage since parent volunteerism has decreased over the years. We remain committed to organizing a safe and special event.

The Town of Branford is very proud of the Class of 2025 and everything they have overcome during their high school years. Students have volunteered endless hours of their time with the Branford Festival, the Branford Road Race, Habitat for Humanity, the Food Council, the Blackstone Library, local churches, and many other charitable organizations throughout New Haven County. Our senior students are being welcomed and accepted at the finest of colleges, universities and technical schools throughout the United States. We owe them the recognition they deserve for all their hard work while attending BHS. We are confident they will continue to represent the Town of Branford with honor.

**PROJECT GRADUATION** is an extraordinary, substance-free event held on the night of graduation. We intend to make it a memorable experience that is fun-filled and safe. This celebration, now in its 30th year, offers our students a memorable event which includes all night entertainment, music, interactive games, non-stop food and prizes for each attending senior. If not for the continued support of volunteers, organizations and businesses this outstanding event would not be possible. We are asking The Board of Education for your financial support to help sponsor such an important and well-deserved event.

The cost to support each Senior at Project Graduation has historically been about \$100. However, prices remain higher than years past and we have added a transportation cost for busses to bring students safely back and forth from the event. The class of 2025 is a big class with a total of 212 students; therefore, we are asking that you contribute an equal amount as last year of \$2,500. We are confident that you will support us again this year. We all share in the responsibility of keeping our graduating class safe and secure on this memorable night. All of us at **PROJECT GRADUATION** thank you for your consideration and support of this annual "BHS Tradition".

Sincerely,

Lauren Loomís
Project Graduation 2025 Committee Member

All donations are payable to: "BHS PROJECT GRADUATION"
185 Main Street, Branford, CT 06405